NRRRRRRERRE PR
CQOWONOURWNRPOOWONOUIAWNE

NN
N =

N N NN
o O hWw

N
~

Stratham Zoning Board of Adjustment
Meeting Minutes
September 20, 2011
Municipal Center, Selectmen’s Meeting Room
10 Bunker Hill Avenue
Time: 7:00 PM

Members Present: Arol Charbonneau, Chairman
Mike Smith
John Dold
Bruce Barker
Jeff Karam
Kirk Scamman
David Short

Members Absent: Chris Brett

Staff Present: Terry Barnes, Building Inspector

1. Call to Order/Roll Call:

Mr. Charbonneau, Chairman called the meeting teroatl 7:00 pm and explained the procedure for
the meeting to all those present.

2. Review of Minutes:

3. Public Hearings:

a. Case # 563: Ken Litvack, 30 Doe Run Lane, Tax Mag, Lot 41
Residential/Agricultural Zoning District. This &public hearing whereby the applicant,
pursuant to RSA 674.33-a, requests two equitableersmand in addition, two Variance
requests for relief from the dimensional requiretaestated in Sections 11.5.3.b
Wetlands Conservation District and 4.2 Table of Bmsional Requirement of the
Stratham Zoning Ordinance to allow an existing sfoagmain on the property.

Mr. Karam read Mr. Litvak’s application for everydy present. Mr. Litvak’s attorney,
Mr. Seth Bostock took the floor. He explained tbaginally his applicant was going to
apply for a variance, but through conversation Wwith Barnes and Mr. Daley from the
Town, decided to apply for an equitable waiver. ldger the Applicant is seeking a
variance from the statutory ten year requirementhe shed as stated in RSA 674:33-a
as he meets all other criteria for that RSA. T@kairman explained that his
understanding is that the ten year statutory litiitais only in lieu of sections 1a and 1b



O©CoOoO~NOOOITPAWNPE

being satisfied. Mr. Bostock was asked to expthenten year rule. The Board agreed
that as long as the Applicant satisfied 1a, b,a&cénf RSA 674:33-a, an equitable waiver
could be granted. Mr. Bostock distributed a copy sketch of the Applicant’s shed.
The Applicant then explained how the situationhef shed arose. Mr. Barnes explained
that the contractor thought he was using the copeaperty lines, but when Jones and
Beach did a survey, it was discovered that a mestekd been made. Mrs. Bayer,
abutter spoke saying that the original surveyorpwhasn’'t Jones and Beach made
mistakes and the contractor was using the originaley when putting the shed in, not
knowing it was wrong until Jones and Beach didshwevey. Mr. Bostock mentioned that
an equitable waiver had been given for the othenexoof Mr. Litvack’s house before
because of the lot line problems. Mr. Dold asked Bharnes if he knew about the
previous survey the abutter referred to, to whiehréplied he did not. The Chairman
then closed the public session.

The Chairman proceeded to go through the critdria(@) through (d) of RSA 674:33-a
for the Board. The Board agreed that Mr. Litvakisfied each of the requirements
although Mr. Dold did request that Mr. Litvak stdteat he hadn’t noticed that his
property was in violation as stated in 1 (a).

Mr. Scamman made a motion on case # 563 Ken Lit8@kKDoe Run Lane, stating that
the requirements of the equitable waiver and RSA33a b ¢ and d have all been met
and therefore should be approved. This was sedobgdéVr. Barker. The motion was

carried unanimously. Mr. Bostock said that thisvnmakes the variance application
mute so they would withdraw it.

There was a short interval whilst the Board wafmd\ir. Dave Short, Board Member to
arrive.

(b) Case # 548:. Ernestine Bayer, 24 Doe Run Lare Map 12, Lot 43 within
Residential/Agricultural Zoning District. This ispaiblic hearing whereby the applicant is
requesting a Special Exception from Article Il. Défons, Section 2.1.36 Kennel, of the
Stratham Zoning Ordinance.

The Chairman explained that Board Member, Mr. Beffam, was an abutter to case #
548, and therefore, would not be able to take g@e Member of the Board.

Mrs Bayer’s attorney, Ms. Somers started by satag she felt there was really no need
to start from scratch as indicated by the Chairm&he recommended for the purpose of
the meeting to see how the various prevention measwave operated over the course
since December 2010. She stated for the recotdvtbaBayer has complied with all the
measures as stated in the written decision madeebBoard in December 2010, and has
even utilized a calendar which tracks the times sha has let the dogs out and back in to
verify that she has complied with the measure ofirfgaher dogs inside by 9pm until
6.30am, Monday through Friday. Ms. Somers and Blagd checked with Mr. Barnes to
see if there had been any complaints filed with Bimd also with Mr. Short, the Board
Member appointed to investigate any further conmpdaias in the plans. She did indicate



O©CoOoO~NOOOITPAWNPE

that there had been one complaint that was madkebgeighbors in the last weekend in
January when Ms. Bayer was out of town. She ajm#dgfollowing that incident and
there have been no further complaints logged wéh since then. Ms. Somers also
mentioned that there had been one complaint logggcthe Police department at around
10.30pm from a Mr. Frock that there was continubasking for over thirty minutes.
However, looking at Ms. Bayer’s records, the dogsrevinside at the time of the
complaint. Ms. Bayer’s personal observations het¢ the insulation of the silencer has
worked very well and Mr. Sharrid who did some catpg at Ms. Bayer’s house during
May and June can testify that he didn’t observedibgs acting inappropriately or acting
up in general whilst he was there. Unfortunatelgks have been thrown at the dogs and
two of the dogs were injured so a complaint haslfided with the police.

Ms. Somers said she was happy to take any questmmebody asked about the
incident of rocks being thrown at the dogs. Hel $hat as the kennel is set far back from
the road, this probably meant that somebody agtuadnt onto Ms. Bayer’s property to
throw the rocks. Ms. Bayer commented she thinks ttie rocks are being thrown with a
slingshot and that it has happened multiple timigls. Charbonneau confirmed that Ms.
Bayer has received one complaint. Ms. Bayer ewpthithat it happened when she was
out of the country and she discovered that a friead brought her dogs over so they
could run around and it was her friend’s dogs taatsed the complaint.

Several other abutters voiced their opinions. Mrar8d stated that apart from when he
first arrives at the house, he hardly hears thes daall when he is working. Mr. Dold
said he remembered from the original meeting laat yhat phone numbers were given to
the abutters should they have any complaints. Bager confirmed this saying she gave
both her cell and home number and Dave Short gesvphone number too and said he
could be over there within 5 minutes if there warey issues. Mr. Dold asked the
abutters present if they all received the phoneberm One abutter responded that they
were told to call the police and notify them. SedeBoard members said they
remembered Mr. Short giving his number. Mr. Doldmmented he thought that
everybody was supposed to be e-mailed and givenBlEger’'s cell telephone number.
One abutter said he remembered receiving it, lmd eBmembered being told that they
should contact the police department. Mr. Litvaited that he walks his dog every
evening and has never heard her dogs bark notiogle sight. Ms. Bayer described the
kennels she has. John Mower, abutter to Mr. Litwadt the other side of Ms. Bayer who
has been living there since 1987, claimed to havey heard the dogs barking.

One abutter explained that another neighbor hadptzoned about the dogs and the
police turned up. Ms. Somers reiterated that amlg complaint had been formally
recorded with the police department. Scott Frdbk, abutter who lodged the formal
police complaint explained that when he calledreghgas nobody available to come out
at that time and he was asked to submit an e-rikglasked if it was right to put a kennel
in the middle of a residential area and althougrkin@wvs her neighbors say they don't
hear it that is due to the location of the kennéfe said that the noise tends to travel in
his direction. He agreed that the problem hasbegtter, but felt that the barking is still
frequent enough. When the dogs are outside, thely. bHe asked if the rights of one



O©CoOoO~NOOITPAWNPE

person outweigh the rights of a whole bunch of peapho live in that area and if
making life miserable for them just to make onespais life happier, is the right thing.
The Chairman asked why he hadn’t complained maenof Mr. Frock explained he is
not home often enough to complain.

The abutter from 38 Butterfield confirmed what Mfrock had said saying he
remembered the policeman leaving Ms. Bayer a netadse nobody was at home. It
was in the afternoon hours. Mr. Short commentatl tthere were multiple arguments for
complaints to be made at the last meeting, butasahife Board has one maybe two
complaints that were documented and asked why mmeplaints weren’t logged. The
abutter from 33 Butterfield claimed that he haderereceived any contact information
from anybody. Another abutter said it was discdsdmit the information was never
given out. It appeared that only one person lgetpghone number and she decided she
didn’t want to get in the middle of the situatioAnother abutter wanted to know how
many complaints they had to make in order for thwarB not to grant Ms. Bayer
permission to have her kennel. The Board respotitdseveral complaints per week
would be needed and reminded everybody that thdyplemty of opportunity to register
complaints which they had not done.

The Board was asked if the condition still appliedseven dogs to which the Board
replied yes and further explained that the Applidgarallowed up to five dogs without a
permit. They also pointed out that if the propestygold, the permit would not apply to
the new owner of the property. The Board saitimiade abutters feel more comfortable,
the Board could add a condition stating that thelispnt was not allowed to operate it as
a business. Ms. Bayer let the abutters know thedishe had bred dogs, the last one
being 2004 and that she doesn’t do frequent brgedMr. Frock said one of the main
concerns the abutters have is trusting Ms. Bay#rstick to the conditions if the permit
is granted. Ms. Bayer responded that she hontweddndition that her dogs have to be
inside from 9pm to 6.30am Monday through Friday amdact did the same for the
weekend. She works from home 3 days a week andthasard them bark. She did
come home one day to hear them barking and sawwbsy barking at 32 turkeys on the
lawn. Ms. Somers supported Ms. Bayer saying thiat dbvious she has adhered to the
conditions and even those abutters not in favoritatiimgs have improved. There have
been no complaints as such and it seems to be ngovkell and she feels it is incumbent
on the abutters if they are having problems dutireggday to complain. If there is a brief
flurry of barking because somebody has turned uthéndriveway, that is acceptable.
She also mentioned that Ms. Bayer is going to lesdlproperty and asked the Board to
continue the approval.

The abutter from 39 Butterfield asked what theestaefinition for “kennel” is and
whether Ms. Bayer could go through the state aretrale the decision made by the
Board. Ms. Somers answered that there is a sedieittbn and a statute that addresses
licensing as such and the only thing that the Tévas is an ordinance which deals with
zoning regulation which are two different types refjulations. The Town only has
jurisdiction to regulate zoning, not to regulateehising and vice versa. Ms. Bayer
explained that she couldn’t get a state licensénéordogs until she was granted a special



O©CoOoO~NOOITPAWNPE

4.

exception. According to the Town'’s regulations,.Bayer is not allowed to have more
than 7 dogs licensed in Stratham. She also mesditimat by State law a vetinerian has
to provide the Town with a rabies certification feach dog that has the rabies shot, so
the Town knows how many dogs a person has on agxojn town.

The Chairman closed the public session and thedBweant over the conditions for the
Special Exception. The Board agreed that all tbeditions had been met. Mr.
Scamman made a motion to approve the special ezngmtovided in section 2.1.20 to
approve the kennel with the conditions from thevimes meeting of August 9, 2011,
those conditions being:

The dogs shall be inside the home from 9:0Qpti 6:30 am Monday through Friday
The owner shall not have more than 7 dogs yatiare.

The owner shall maintain the current dog keferate with tarp covers.

The owner shall maintain a dog silencer systehelp keep the dogs from barking
The abutters shall be able to call ErnestingeBd they have any complaints
regarding the dogs.

Al S

This was seconded by Mr. Short. The Board cartidmotion unanimously and the
Chairman closed Case # 548.

Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 9.10pm



